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(D. GERGEN) ‘ October 14, 1976

DRAFT CLOSING STATEMENT

Ladies and Gentlemen:

I would like to break with tradition
tonight and close with a brief personal statement.

'Ail of us know that Zoldays‘from now, the
American people will choose the President who will lead
us into our third century as a natidn{kA

This country has been blessed with inspired
leadership iﬁ the past -- the Washingtons, Jeffersbnsr
and Lincolns. The way in which we selec£ our next
President in 1976 should reflect these great traditions.

This puts a special obligation on the
vqters to 1istepvcarefully.and to fhink\judiciously about
the directions theyrwant the country to pursue in

coming years.



It’puts a special obligation on the
members of the press to write and speak clearly about
the iésues that matter -- the questions that affect the
well-being of our people and the security of our country.

And it‘places a’speciai cbligatioh’upon
‘the candidates themselves to speak openly and candidly
about the problems of today and their dreams of tomorrow --
to say what they mean and mean what théy say.

During the next three weeks, I will do all
that I,cah to live ﬁb to my respénsibilitieé as President
and as a candidate for this high office.

I would also ask that each of ué makes a
pledge in our own hearts. When éll is saidrandrdone;
when the ballots are counted on November 2nd -- regardless
of who wins or loses -~ we must unite one again as a

great nation and as a great people. That is our



obligation as citizens; that is the heritage of
our past; and that is our hope for the future.

Thank you.



DOMESTIC ISSUES




DOMESTIC

October 14, 1976

The Economic Recovery

Many have expressed concern in recent weeks that the
economic recovery is faltering badly. Unemployment

is sticking near 8 percent, wholesale prices shot up
last month, and the stock market has been plunging.

What is your assessment of what's wrong with the economy
and what exactly will happen in the future?

Although the very rapid rate of economic recovery has

slowed since the Spring and the so-called pause has lasted

a bit longer than we had expected, there is no evidence

of any underlying deterioration in the récovery.

In fact, we expect the rate of growth in real GNP in the
fourth quarter of 1976 and into 1977 to be greater than that
of both the second and third quarters of this year. (Note:
The rate of growth in the first quarter was 9.2%, 4.5%

in the second quarter and somewhere betweén 3.5% to 4.% in
the third quarter.) We expect gains in consumption, business
investment and housing. Our view that growth will accelera&e
is shared by the majority of economists in the private

sector who believe that the economic recovery will pick up
steam again as it moves into 1977.

As far as inflation is concerned, we were somewhat

surprised by the size of the increase of the wholesale

price index (.9%) for last month. MWevertheless,

there is no evidence that ﬁnderlying inflationary pressures ar
growing. Wage increases have been moderate. It's been
evident that manufacturers have had difficulty in making
price increases stick. For example, the steel industry's

recent reversal.
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Swine Flu

What advice would you give to elderly people
about obtaining swine flu shots?  How can the
American people be sure that taking a swine flu
shot is less dangerous than not taking one?

My advice to the elderly is to continue to

'receive the swine-type influenza innoculation.

All available evidence indicates that the recently
reported deaths which occurred after innoculation
were not due to the vaccine itself but rather

were the results of other health problems.

The scientific and medical data continue to
support the need for this program. I believe
in this preventive effort and all Americans who
can, should take the flu shot. Any possible
risks are significantly less than those which
would prevail if a swine flu epidemic should
occur.

I might add that less than 10 hours ago, I had

~a shot of my own. So did the members of my

family and so did my press secretary because
we wanted to show our continued confidence in
this program. And I can report to you tonight
that all of us feel fine. :



FARM POLICIES

In the past week, you have acted to restrict
meat imports and you have raised farm price
supports, In both cases, farmers are likely

to be pleased and questions have been raised
whether your actions were politically motivated.
Are you willing to tell us that politics played
absolutely no part in your decisions?

Yes, In both instances the actions have been

- taken only after careful analysis to assure that

these steps are in the best interest of our
farmers -- and the Nation. The action on meat
import quotas was required by the Meat Import
Law, The increase in the loan rates on corn
and wheat was done to provide our farmers with
adequate interim financing to enable them to
market the bountiful corn and wheat crops in an
ordexrly fashion.

PCL
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RECENT WHEAT LOAN RATE INCREASE

Mr, President, you raised the Government loan rates on
wheat on Wednesday, October 13, Why did this happen at
this time?

At the time that I vetoced the Farm Bill in May 1975, X
promised that "If unforeseen price detericration requires
action on my part, I will direct the Secretary of '
Agriculture to make adjustments in price support loan
rates for wheat, corn, soybeans, and other feed grains.®

I have been closely monitoring the grain situation since

that time. In mid-September, I met with former Secretary

of Agriculture Butz and other key members of my Administration
on the guestion of loan rates for wheat., We covered the-
entire wheat price picture--including contemplated U.S.

export sales, At the close of the meeting, I determined

not to make any further decision on this question until

the market situation was clarified through issuance of the
Department's monthly wheat forecast in early October. That
forecast plays a large role in estimating future wheat prices.

The report was issued at 3:00 p.m. Tuesday. As is
customary, no policy official of the Administration had
access to its contents before issuance., Immediately

after issuance, I asked my policy advisers in agricultural
matters for their best judgment on the wheat price
picture. At the time of my veto of the Farm Bill in

May 1975, the price of wheat stood at $3.34 per bushel.*
As of close of the markets on Tuesday, October 12, 1976,
it had fallen to $2.79 per bushel. Based on the analysis
of the wheat situation, I decided that this year's
bountiful harvest--combined with certain events abroad--
has created pressures on the wheat market which could not
be foreseen last February when the $1.50 wheat loan rate
was established and which required making available
additional amounts of "interim" loan money to carry supplies
forward to insure a pattern of orderly marketing.

*Cash price for No. 2 ordinary hard wheat at Kansas City.
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1 am confident that the American farmers will be able to
dispose of this record crop in an orderly fashion at
reasonable prices, but in order to do so, they must not
be forced to sell their crops in temporarily depressed
markets. 'The increase in the loan rate will now permit
our wheat farmers to hold their crops until the wheat
price is at a higher level.

PCL
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LOW WHEAT PRICES

Q: What are you doing to help pull up our low wheat prices?

A: In addition to working with the wheat industry to promote
sales abroad, my Administration is taking several other
steps:

- We have recently raised the loan rate for wheat from
$1.50 to $2.25 so that wheat farmers will have
adequate interim financing to allow them to hold
their bountiful wheat crop and market,lt in an
orderly fashion. s '

- On October 1 USDA announced a $1 billion FY 1977
budget for the Commodity Credit Corporation Export
Credit Sales Program., This is $100 million more
than in FY 1976. Plans call for a doubling of the
CCC credit allocated to wheat,

- Also on October 1 we made a $100 million line of
CCC credit available to Poland. We expect Poland

to use this credit to buy considerably more grain this

year than last year,

- We plan to increase our FY 1977 exports of wheat
under the PL 480 program by about 30% over last year,

- Finally, when the Farm Bill comes up for renewal
in 1977, we will recommend that the target price
for wheat be increased.

BACKGROUND

This year, US wheat crop is estimated at a near record 2,127
nmillion bushels, slightly less than last year's record crop.
This crop, coupled with a larger carryover on June 1, provides
one of the largest supplies of wheat ever.

Exports probably won't match the 1,175 million bushels shipped
in 1975/76 because of a record world wheat crop and a reduced
demand for imports. Even with domestic use up substantially
because of more wheat used for feed, stocks are expected to
build for the third successive year.



-2~

In many wheat producing areas, deficit in feed grains, wheat
is now priced as a feed and this situation is expected to hold
well into the midwest cern harvest. As a result, wheat feeding
in 1976/77 will expand sharply from the low levels of the past
three seasons. Also, it appears that some foreign buyers may

be booking wheat instead of feed grains, This situation suggests

that wheat prices being supported in part by feed markets may
have bottomed out, Corn prices, which set a "flooxr" for wheat,
have recently moved up.

After showing surprisingly early strength wheat prices have
declined sharply. Prices at the farm averaged $3.33 in mid-
July but only $2,88 per bushel in September. Spot and futures
prices have been showing some strength recently but still are
well below last year's and this seasons highs. For example,
the cash price for hard winter wheat at Kansas City closed

at $2.92 on Wednesday, October 13,versus $4.07 a year ago.

The target price for wheat was increased by law from $2.05 per
bushel in 1975 to $2.29 for this crop year. Unless Congress
changes the law, the target price will go to $2.44 per bushel
in 1977, In early 1976, the loan rate for wheat was increased
to $1.50 per bushel. On Wednesday, October 13, it was raised
again to $2.25.

PCL. :
10/14/76



DOMESTIC

Carter's Medicare/Medicaidk Plan

Q: . Carter this week has charged you with failing to correct w_t.despreaci
fraud in medicaid, and he has proposed medicaid and medicare reforms
of his own. Can you give us your assessment of his charges and his
new plan? , ,

A: In his statement on Medicare and Medicaid, Mr. Carter has once again
played fast and loose with the facts. I'm afraid he is unfamiliar
with programs and responsibilities, he has been fuzzy about how
he would solve the problem,: '

For example:

~- He blames the Social Security Administration for the recent
 increases in first day hogpital costs for Medicare
patients from $104 to $124. The fact is that the increase
announced by HEW is specifically mandated in the law passed by the
Congress requiring that the amount by adjusted annually
according to a fixed formula.

~-  He faults the Administration for proposing higher cost sharing
by Medicare points in the 2nd to 59th day of hospitalization.
The fact is that this proposal was part of my catastrophic
protection plan to insure that the elderly would
no longer face the disastrous cost of prolonged illness
or pay mere than $500 in cost sharing for hospitalization.

-- He alleges that the Administration has made no response
to the Senate investigation of the Medicaid program.
The fact is that the Administration had taken the initiative
in responding to the Medicaid problems long before the
Senate report.

—- HEW has increased its manpower on fraud and abuse
-programs since 1974 (from 1 to 145).

-~ HEW has centralized its criminal investigaticn activities.

~-  HEW called attention to this problem in the spring and
has provided special review teams to work with states
to ferret out fraud and abuse. Three ore underway now,
all at the request of the governors.

~-  Medicaid investigations have been increased from 2,700 in
FY75 to 7,200 in FY76. Convictions are up over three times.
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Mr. Carter asserts that HEW has hnpleﬁented only 11 of 59 GAD
recanmendations on Medicaid. The allegation is wrong. HEW
has taken action on all but 2 of the 59 recammendations.

Governor Carter states that he will restructure the delivery
system to eliminate fraud and abuse but fails to say how.

He recamends a new way to pay hospitals called prospective
reimbursement. He should know that that prospective
reimbursement is already being tried pursuant to statutory
directives. It is a promising idea that is now being explored
but not a panacea. '

Governor Carter recamvends an aggressive central fraud and
abuse unit to investigate violations of law. That should be easy
since the Administration has already created one.

The fact is that if Congress had passed my pmposal to replace Medicaid
and 15 other categorical health programs with a single block
grant, the confusion which invites abuse would be ended.



DOMESTIC

AIRCRAFT NOTISE

Q: Mr. President, there has been a lot of discussion recently
that you are about to announce a major new aircraft
noise proposal. Is this true? And, can we expect an
announcement before November 27?

A: I am well aware of the serious problem of aircraft noise

at a number of our major airports around the country.

I have spent a great deal of time with Secretary Coleman
in the last month on this very question,as well as with
others in the Administration.

There is no question but that we have a serious aircraft
noise problem. There are 25 or 26 ailrports where the

noise problem is severe, and 100 where the problem is

serious. More than 6 million people live near these airports.

Some improvements have already been made. The Airport
Development and Assistance Program Amendments of 1976, which
I signed in July, make more Federal funds available to
airports to purchase land to serve as noise barriers.

The Federal Aviation Administration has implemented takeoff
and landing procedures which are designed to lessen noise,
consistent with safety needs.

Looking ahead, the Congress must enact the aviation regulatory
reform legislation that I recommended to them a year ago.
That legislation would allow the airlines to develop the
capability themselves to refit or replace their noisy

older planes and insure that, in the near future, all

planes flying will meet the noise standards. So far neither
the House nor the Senate has acted on this important
legislation, which is the first comprehensive updating

of airline regulations in almost 40 years.

Secretary Coleman has further suggested to me that the tax
on airline tickets and on air freight be reduced 2% and that
a financing plan be worked out to take that 2% and establish
an environmental fund to assist the airlines in refitting
or replacing their o0ld noisy aircraft.

We are in the process of making a final decision on this
difficult issue. Although I cannot tell you the exact
timing of the decision, I can tell you that I am not going
to tolerate an 8 to 10 year delay in solving the noise
problem at American airports.



FOREIGN POLICY
ISSUES




Recent Arms Sales to Israel

Mr. President, your recent decision to provide
additional items of highly sophisticated military
equipment to Israel appears curious in its timing.
Was your decision a reaction to Carter's charges

- that you were not fully responsive to Israel's

needs, and if not, what motivated it? Further,

it is reported that the normal review process

was circumvented so as to facilitate an early
announcement and exploitation before the election.
Is that true? ‘ '

As a matter of policy we do not discuss the
details of arms transfers with Israel or any other
country. But I can tell you this was not poli-
tically motivated. As Foreign Minister Allon
made clear in remarks following our meeting on
Monday, there are many items which have been
requested by the Israeli government and which

have been under consideration for a long time.

As details of this sale are worked out, they will
be provided to the Congress, as this Administration
does with all military sales.

But wasn't your decision last week timed for
maximum election impact?

As I have already mentioned, these items have

been under consideration for some time. The
Israell government had requested an early response,
and after a careful review of all of the consider-
ations involved, I made a decision. It was a
decision made on its merits in the interest of

U.S. foreign policy. There was no particular
reason to delay the decision or its transmittal

to the Government of Israel.



But isn't it true that you bypassed all of
your advisers and made the decision without
benefit of the advice of experts.

Not at all, Each of these items had been
carefully reviewed by all relevant agencies
and I had the benefit of their views in
making my decision.
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SALT

Some observers interpreted your comments in the
second debate about the Backfire bomber and cruise
missile as meaning that you would seek a SALT
agremeent at almost any price. Can you respond

to that charge?

I have repeatedly said I will not sign an agree-
ment that is not clearly in our best interests,

and any agreement, of course, will be submitted

to the Senate.

The overall prospects for a new agreement are
favorable. I was encouraged by my recent meeting
with Foreign Minister Gromyko. Both sides are
interested in reaching a sound, realistic agree-
ment. I am convinced that if we continue in

this spirit, we will reach a good agreement.

This will be our approach in these negotiations.
We will seek solutions that are fair and equitable
and will only accept proposals that are clearly
in our national interest. ‘
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SOVIET NUCLEAR TESTS

Can you comment on reports that two Soviet nuclear blasts on
August 28 and September 29 may have violated the 150 KT
threshold of the TTB and PNE Agreements? Why has the
Administration decided to stop releasing information on the
size of Soviet tests.

The Soviet Government stated on August 10 that they would
abide by the 150 KT threshold pending ratification of the TTB/PNE
Treaties., Our preliminary assessment indicates that their
August and September tests were consistent with this limit,

But our estimate of any Soviet test is never exact. There
is always a significant range of uncertainty. That is why it is
important for the Congress to take action on the Threshold Test
Ban Treaty and the Peaceful Nuclear Explosion treaties now before
it. These new treaties contain provisions for the exchange of
information which will greaﬂy’improve our ability to estimate
the yields of tests.

We must ensure that our public announcement policy is
both consistent with the framework and our obligations under the
two treaties and the uncertainties inherent in our verification
system, and also to keep the American people adequately informed
in this area. We are at the present time reviewing the
entire situation to determine how best to accominodate these

various needs. In all cases, of course, the Congress will be

kept fully informed.



Arab Boycott

Mr. President, since the second debate, you
have successfully addressed the question of
Eastern Europe, but you haven't really followed
up on the Arab boycott issue. (1) Can you tell
us why you told the American people that past
participants in the boycott would be revealed?
(2) Can you respond to Democratic charges that
your Administration blocked legislation this
yvear? (3) Can you tell us what Arab boycott
legislation you are prepared to support this
January?

First let's look at the record. Boycott
practices began in 1952. After more than 20
years of inactivity, I am the first American
President to look seriously at the problem
and take corrective action to deal with it.

-— In March 1975, I directed the Secretary
of Commerce to study the matter comprehensively
and to give me recommendations for dealing
with it.

-- As a result of that study I implemented
proposals in November 1975 which have put an
effective end to practices of discrimination
against Americans on the basis of religion,
national origin, race or sex.

-~ The Anti-Trust Division of the Justice
Department has brought the first suit against
U.S. business for boycott practices,

~—~ On October 4 of this year I signed the
tax bill which included anti-boycott provision.

~- In addition, I proposed constructive
compromises to other legislation being considered
in the closing days of this Session.



-- When Congress adjourned without taking
final action, I acted on October 7 by directing
the Department of Commerce to do what the Con-
gress failed to do; namely, to require public
disclosure of future reports on the Arab
boycott, effective immediately.

~— There was no suggestion by the Congress
of retroactivity in its proposals nor do I
think it would be wise in view of the confiden-
tiality which was promised when past reports
were submitted to the government.

With respect to legislation in the future,
I beleive it is premature to speculate on what
may be required. My proposals announced in
November 1975 together with the additional
measures I have tken since then provide a basis

for substantial progress in this area. I believe
it would be useful to assess the effect these new

efforts will have before proceeding to new mea-
sures.



DEVELOPMENTS IN CHINA

Apparently the Chinese have sclected Hua Kuo-feng as new Chairman
of the Communist Party and have arrested all of the leading leftists.
How do you see these developments affecting US-PRC relations?
There have been personnel changes in the People’s Republic
resulting from the death of Chairman Mao. The developments

being reported in the press recently are solely a domestic matter
for the People's Republic. We are not aware that the US-PRC
relationship is a subject of partisan debate within China and 1 see

no reason to expect that changes in personnel will have any impact

on our bilateral relations.



3

AFRICA

There appears to be continuing uncertainty about prospe&s for
peace in southern Africa, What is your current expectation?

I remain optimistic that a peaceful settlement can be
achieved in Rhodesia. The United Kingdom has called for a
conference of the parties to the Rhodesian dispute to open in
Geneva on October 21,

While there are many critical issues to be ironed out,
including the composition and structure of the transition
government, there is agreement on the ultimate objectives; to
establish the transitional government and pave the way for a
constitutional conference and independence within two years,

There have been many public statements in recent weeks,
but I do not interpret these statements as efforts by any of the
parties to prejudge the conference or modify the ultimate
objectives.

The Namibian issue is moving more slowly. I am never-
theless hopeful that independence can also be accomplished
peacefully there by the end of 1978, as already offered by the

South African Government, The immediate step is to work out a

formula whereby all parties can come together under United Nations

auspices to work out the necessary steps toward independence.



Nuclear Policy

There have been a number of leaks from the
Administration in the last two weeks that you
had developed and would soon propose a new
nuclear program. Can you tell us what the
main outline of that program will be?

Nuclear policy, and particularly the control
of nuclear proliferation, is an area I singled
out for special attention early in my Adminis-
tration.

We are a world leader in nuclear power, but
this is a sensitive matter because we must
obtain the cooperation of other nations around
the world. We cannot simply impose our con-
clusions on other countries. ‘

In two years time, we have made good progress.
Beginning in May 1975, I directed that nego-
tiations be undertaken with the six other major
nuclear supplier nations on steps to control
proliferation. By January 1976, after six
meetings of the suppliers, we had achieved agree-
ment on a common set of non-proliferation goals
that each supplier would impose as a condition of
exports.

Just this past week, the Government of France
announced, that it was prepared to take new steps
to control proliferation. This action is a con-
structive contribution in the cooperative effort --
begun at U.S. initiative 18 months ago -- among

the nuclear supplier nations. '

This past summer, I directed that a thorough

‘review be undertaken of all our nuclear policies

and options to see whether still additional steps
could be taken. I will make specific announcements
in the near future, but I can tell you generally
tonight about two major policy changes:



-~ First, I have decided that the U.S.
Government should change its attitude and policy
on reprocessing of nuclear fuel in this country.
Reprocessing is no longer to be accepted as a
necessary and inevitable step in the nuclear
power fuel cycle. I believe that we should
proceed with reprocessing only when we become
fully satisfied that it can be done safely, can
be adequately safeguarded and that it makes sense
from an economic and energy point-of-view.

-~ Second, I have decided on a series of
additional steps that the U.S. will take to
encourage other nations of the world to follow
our lead in postponing their decisions on repro-
cessing, and thus help to assure that our mutual
non-proliferation goals are met.

Domestic Council
October 14, 1976
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"Carter's Mean Streak

Apparently some members of your campaign
advisory committee early this week told you
that Carter is conducting a mean, nasty cam-
paign. Do you agree?

This has been a matter of some concern to me,
but I think the American people are the best
ones to judge whether Mr. Carter, by tempera-
ment and experience, is qualified to govern
the country.



Campaigning by the White House Staff

There have been suggestions in the last few days
that the Democrats would filé a legal suit
charging that members of the White House staff,
paid by the taxpayers, are spending excessive

amounts of time on your campaign. Have you looked

into this?

Before this campaign began, we gave very clear
instructions that every member of my staff here
at the White House was to give the taxpayers

a full week's work for a full week's pay. That
is the policy we have consistently followed.

In fact, we have gone further than any White
House in my memory to separate our campaign-
related activities and put them over at our
campaign committee. For instance, we have
instructed Cabinet members who have recently
accepted speaking invitations, even for official
purposes, to send their bills to my campaign
committee -- and not to the U.S. Treasury



POLITICAL

The Debates

Do you think you won the second debate?
And dc you plan to ask for a change in
format in the third debate?

I was unhappy that I made a couple of slipsg in
the second debate that marred my performance.
But I felt I answered the questions honestly
and openly.

As far as the next one is concarned, there is

only one change that I would seriously like to
make -~ and that is for Mr. Carter to join in

the debate by addressing himself to the ques-

tions.



POLITICS

Carter's "Extramarital Affairs"

Both the LA Times and Jack Anderson have said
this week that your campaign aides have been
spreading to the press false rumors about
Carter's extramarital life. Have you looked
into this, and what have you done about it?

As far as I'm concerned, there is no place in
American politics for dirty tricks or personal
smears. The American people expect higher
standards, and I expect higher standards. I

am not aware of any responsible person in my
campaign spreading malicious rumors, and I have
made it clear once again to my campaign organi-
zation that I will not tolerate shoddy campaign
tactics. The issues in this campaign are too
important to be clouded by such nonsense.



Carter Demagogue

You have charged that Carter is a demagogue.
Can you give us a concrete example?

As one who has taken part in election campaigns
for 30 years -~ either as a candidate or in
support ©f others -- I have had ample opportunity
to observe questionable campaign tactics,
including the practice of saying one thing on
Monday and the opposite on Tuesday, one thing

in the south and another in the north, one thing
to business leaders and another to the leaders

of labor.

But I must say that I have rarely seen a can-
didate for the Presidency go as far as my opponent
did in our last debate.

On national television -- carried to all the
world via satellite -- he told our allies and our
adversaries that this nation is not respected

any more. He knows that is not true.

He told our allies and our adversaries that we
are not strong any more. He knows that is not
true.

He told the world that his own country, the
United States of America, in an action he calls
"typical" overthrew the elected government of
Chile. He knows that is reckless demagoguery.

And with all the world watching and listening,
the man who wants so urgently to be President

of the United States, made the utterly outrageous
charge that we tried to start a new Viet Nam war
in Angola.



Every one of these statements if false. The
American people know that, and so did Mr. Carter
when he said them. His charges did not reflect
a slip of the tongue or an imprecise choice

or words. They were very calculating and
deliberate.

What are the people of the world to think, hearing
charges like this from a man who leads one of

the two major political parties in our country,

a man who seeks to be the leader of the free
world?

What are the people of other nations to believe?

Whether speaking willfully or in naive innocence,
he has done grave damage to the interest of our
country.

He has slandered the name of the United States in
order to advance his own name. He has discouraged
our friends and allies, and he has given encourage-
ment to those who bear us ill.

As a candidate, I am not concerned about anything
Mr. Carter may say domestically because I have
total faith in the common sense and the basic
fairness of the American people.

But when Mr. Carter trades the prestige and

good name of the United States for a few more
votes, he demeans the political process and does
our nation irreparable harm.

Therefore, I now call upon Mr. Carter to retract
his insulting statements about our country, and

I hereby serve notice that if he ever makes
another statement which falsely portrays the
strength or the integrity or the respect of the
United States of America, the President of the
United States will again set the record straight.



Butz

In retrospect, would you have handled the
Butz affair differently? And can you tell
us whether you have asked him to campaign
for you?

No. I try not to shoot from the hip, especially
when I am dealing with someone who has served
the nation with as much distinction as Earl
Butz.

Farl Butz made a mistake, I reprimanded him

for it immediately, and he publicly apologized.
Three days later, he submitted his resignation,
and I accepted it. But I will never forget that
Farl Butz served this nation well, he served
American farmers well, and he served me well.

It was one of the saddest moments of my Presi-
dency when I accepted his resignation.

As far as campaigning goes, agricultural issues
are an important part of this election. During
Earl's tenure, we developed a free market, full
production farm policy that has greatly bene-~
fitted farmers and consumers. To the extent
that this is an issue, I would welcome his
efforts to support this record of achievement.
However, Earl is not a part of the campaign
staff or organization and his efforts are his
own personal decision.



POLITICS

Religious Endorsements

This past Sunday you went to a Southern Baptist
Church where vou were in effect endorsed by the
preacher. Do you have any second thoughts about
Presidential candidates actively seeking out the
endorsements of religious leaders?

Personal values and beliefs have come to play a
large role in this campaign. If that helps the
American people make a sounder and wiser choice,
I think it is healthy.

Beyond that, I do not intend to wear my religious
beliefs on my shirt sleeve, but I am not going to
hide my convictions or halt my religious practices
just because we're in the midst of a political
campaign.



POLITICS
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Voter Apathy

Do you have any solution for overcoming voter apathy?

I think that over the past 15 years or more, many
Americans have lost faith in the government because
political candidates promise them so much during campaigns
and deliver so little when they are in office~-—except

for more inflation and more taxes. As we restore the
traditions of the past--a government that is sound and
responsible, a government that promises only what it

can deliver and delivers all that it promises--that will
do more to restore public confidence in government than
anything else.



POLITICS

Equal Time for Carter

Do you think the networks should now grant Governor
Carter free time for a half-hour prime-~time news
conference?

That, of course, is a decision for them to make. But I
think that anytime the press can persuade Mr. Carter to
respond directly to guestions on the issues, many people
would like to tune in.






Charges by John Dean

John Dean has charged in effect that at the
request of the Nixon White House, you sought
to block the Patman investigation in 1972

and thereafter, in your confirmation hearings,
you were less than straightforward about it.
Would you please respond?

This was a matter that I testified to in my con-
firmation hearings to become Vice President. I
testified openly about the matter and to the
satisfaction of the House Judiciary Committee.

I am happy to stand on my testimony.

I might add that I look upon these allegations
in the same way that I look upon the charges
laid to rest this morning by the Special
Prosecutor.

Would you object to the Special Prosecutor's
office investigating the Dean allegations?

That is a decision I will be happy to leave

to them. I did not interfere in the way they
conducted an examination of my campaign finances,
and I do not intend to interfere now. I have
nothing whatsoever to fear.

Is John Dean lying?

I do not intend to pass judgment on Mr. Dean.
He will have to answer to his own conscience.

I might say that it is curious that Mr. Dean

has waited until he is trying to promote his

book -- a book that comes out in the closing weeks
of an election ~- to press this point. The
question was raised with me in my own confirma-
tion hearings, I testified about it openly, and
the House Judiciary Committee did not even deem

it worthy of a mention in its report.



MEMORANDUM
THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

October 14, 1976

MEMORANDUM FOR: DAVID GERGEN
FROM: AGNES WALDRON
SUBJECT: The Investigation of Gerald R. Ford

The House Judiciary Committee held hearings that lasted 36 hours
and 34 minutes, President Ford's testimony in three different
sessions lasted for a total of 15 hours and 18 minutes.

The Committee collected and made available to its members
the following:

1. A 144 page compilation analysing the Ford philosophy
and voting record compled by the Library of Congress

2. The complete voting record
3. A compilation of special interest group ratings

4. Computer print outs of all New York Times articles
on Gerald Ford from 1969 to 1973

5. A complete history of all statements and entries in
the Congressional Record

6. Special in-depth reports in seven different areas from
Ford biographical data to a review of his effort to
impeach Justice Douglas

7. Tax returns from 1965-1972

8. Medical records

9. Campaign finance records from 19541972

10, A review of 22 Departments and Agencies files

11. All correspondants names were checked against contributors lists

12, A comparison of senior officers of major goverament

contracts to campaign contributors lists



13. An examination of State and local law enforcement agencies
14. An examination of Bar Association records
15. An examination of Ford's law practice
16. An examination of honoraria received
17. An examination of printing expenses
18. A review of payroll accounts
19. An investigation by the FBI that comprised over 1700
pages of raw data. The investigation involved more
than 350 special agents, 33 field offices and over
1000 interviews  *%
The Committee report said '"Not one public day nor one issue
nor one vote nor one public statement of the Vice President
designate went unexamined by the Committee staff in the course

of its research''.

%% The members were not permitted to examine the raw data, but had
access to the FBI's conclusions.



House was

THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

October 14, 1976

MEMORANDUM FOR THE PRESIDENT

VIA: DAVE GERGEN
FROM: AGNES WALDRON
SUBJECT: . John Dean and the Patman Investigation

of Watergate

In his prepared testimony before the Senate Watergate
Committee Dean said that in mid~August 1972 the White
)ccncerned with an investigation being conducted
by the staff of the House Banking and Currency Committee
because it would produce more adverse publicity and it
might unravel the cover-up.

He said the lawyer for the Committee to Re-~Elect the
President, Kenneth Parkinson, was put in touch with
Congressman Garry Browg,a member of the Patman Committee

Dean recalled a meeting with the President September 15, 1972,
when the Committee was briefly and generally discussed.

(White House transcripts of this meeting were released in
April 1974 in which President Nixon told Dean and Haldeman

to enlist the aid of Jerry Ford who was to be told that
guashing the Committee investigation was urgent and that
these instructions came from "the top." A similar transcript
was also released by the House Judiciary Committee.)

In his Watergate testimony, Dean said that on September 25
Patman announced that he would hold a Committee vote on
October 3 to seek approval of the issuing of subpoenas for
witnesses. "With this," Dean said, "the White House
Congressional Relations staff began talking with members of
the Committee as well as the Republican leadership." (Emphasis
added)

Dean went on to say he recalled several conversations with
Bill Timmons and Dick Cook. When the list of potential
witnesses was released, Dean told the Committee "Bill Timmons
took a much greater interest in the (investigation) when he
realized...that his name was among those who would be called.
I say this nobt because Timmons had any reason not to appear
because I know of no illecgal or improper activity on Tiwmmons'




part, rather he had been working to prevent the hearings
from occurring in the first instance through his conver-
sations with the Republican leaders and members of the
Committee."” (Emphasis added)

Dean continued, "Mr. Timmons discussed the matter with

the House Republican leaders who agreed to be of assistance
by making it a matter for the leadership's consideration,
which resulted in direction from the leadership to the
members of the Committee to vote against the hearings,
(Emphasis added)

Dean's book version of the episode differs little from his prepared
testimony except to flesh it out with dialogue. He quotes
Haldeman as saying: "{(T)ell Timmons to keep on Jerry Ford's
ass. He knows he's got to produce on this one.”

According to Dean, Timmons reported back that Jerry Ford

didn't think it would be a good idea to pressure Patman

to turn off the investigation through his campaign contributions.
Timmons is quoted as saying: "...I'll tell you frankly

the problem is that, uh, Jerry himself might have some

problems in this area, and so might some of our guys on the
Committee. I don't think we ought to open this up." (Emphasis
acded)

On the Today Show (October 13, 1976) Tom Brokaw describes
the revelations in Dean's book as "new developments." Carl
Stern commented: "Perhaps the most disturbing matter raised,
...1s the thought that Mr. Ford did have very intimate
contact with White House staff people, in planning precisely
how to (derail the Patman investigation)."

Stern goes on tc say: "Now Mr. Ford testified during
his own confirmation hearings that he didn't have any
such contact or at least he didn't recall any."

The above guote really muddies the water hecause in his
Watergate testimony and in his book, Dean makes it clear
that Timmons and Dick Cook were the persons with whom
Mr. Ford talked.

In your Senate confirmation hearings Senator Robert Byrd
‘asked: "Were you in contact with anyvone at the White House
during the period of August through October 1972 concerning
the Patman Committee's possible investigation of the Watergate
break in?"



Mr. Ford: "Not to my best recollection. The best and,

I think most authoritative answer to this question is one
Representative Jerry Brown...submitted to the Ervin
Committee.

Congressman Brown was very much involved as a member

of the Committee on Banking and Currency, and his name
was much more closely identified with this problem than
was mine." (Brown's letter to the Ervin Committee was
put in the hearing record.)

Senator Byrd then asked: "Mr. Ford, you undoubtedly
would recall any conversation you might have had during
that period of August-Qctober with the President, with
Mr. Haldeman, Mr. Ehrlichman, Mr. Dean or anyone at the
White House...."

Mr. Ford: "I can say categorically...I never talked with
the President about it (the Patman investigation) or with
Mr. Haldeman, Mr. Ehrlichman or Mr. Dean. I know
emphatically I had no conversation with them now.

"Almost daily, during my period as Republican leader in
the House, I talked with Mr. Timmons or someone 1in the
Legislative Liaison Office of the White House, but even
in this case I do not recall any conversations concerning
this particular matter.”

You then went on to “"recall two meetings I attended, both

of which I called, the real issue was discussed...was that
Mr. Patman...was going about the matter in the wrong way.
And as I recall, statements were made he was going on a
fishing expedition." (He met with members of the Committee.)

Senator Byrd: "As I understand you, any efforts that you may
have made toward the stifling or impeding of such an
investigation by the Patman Committee, were not born of

your feeling...that such an investigation would be harmful

to the President, harmful to his chances of reelection or
harmful to your party?”

Mr. Ford: "The answer 1is no, Senator Byrd."

In the House confirmation hearings the Patman Committee
investigation was brought up by Mrs. Holtzman. She

referred to your Senate testimony and said: “Although

you met with Mr. Timmons...virtually every day you did

not discuss with him these matters of the allegations

in the Banking and Currency staff report and you did not

discuss the White House role or White House interest in stopping
the investigations by the Banking and Currency Committee;

is that correct?”



Mr. Ford: "Now I said over there (the Senate Committee)
...that I did not discuss the action that I took, which
was to call two Republican meetings of members of the
Banking and Currency Committee with Mr. Timmons or
anybody else."

In answer to a subsequent gquestion you said: "I was
asked by several members on our side of the aisle to
call the Committee together. That was and is my
responsibility, as Republican leader in the House. to
get groups like that together when they have a problem.
I did it. I presided. They discussed the position that
they as a group ought to take in the hearings...."”

This whole tempest in a teapot appears to hinge on

whether you discussed the Patman investigation with
Timmons. But Dean claims now (in the Today Show

interview) that your contacts were with Dick Cook.

You were never asked about conversations with him.

Dean said Cook reported back that you were calling a
meeting of the Republican members of Banking and Currency.
This information could have come from any of those members.
Garry Brown in his letter to the Ervin Committee said

Dick Cook "rather than suggesting or urging me to take any
course of action, merely inquired of me how things were
going or whether or not I thought those of us who opposed
the hearings would be successful in our oppositicon. In

my discussions with other members of the Committee at that
time and since, I have yet to find one who indicated that
he or she was pressured in anyway to vote as he or she did."
(Emphasis added)




WATERGATE COMMITTEE
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Haldeman as to people who should be romovul after tho election. T
told Kizasley that this matter had come up mnm'r 21X conversation
with the President and he said he had wondered what biad put now life
into his project as he had received several c:‘dls frous Highy alwout the
status of his projeet within the last few days. The mecting ended with
a conversation with the President about a book I was rcading.

I left the meeting with the impression that the President was well
aware of what had been eoing on regarding the success of keeping the
White House out of the “YdtCl'gdtL scandal and I ‘mn had expr vessed to
him my concern that I was not confident that the coverup could :
maintained indefinitely.

Brocxine TEE Pararax Coaxvirrrer Hearixcs

I would next like to turn to the White House cfforts to binck the

Patman committee hearings. As early 25 mid-August 1972, the White

ITouse learned through the congressional relations staff that an inves-
tigation was being conducted b} the staff of the Honse Banking and
Currency Committee, under the direction of Chairman menan. into
many aspects of the Watergate incident. The focus of the investization
at the outset was the fundm" of the Watergate incident, a and other
possible illegal funding that 1 may have involved bankuw violations.
The White House concern was twofold: First, the hearings wounld
have resulted in more adverse preclection pubhcxt\' recarding the
Watereate. and seeond, they just might stumble into something that
would start nn raveling the cover up-

The initial dealm«*» with the Patman committee and the reelection
committee were handled by Mr. Stans and Muv. Parkinson. ITowever,
as the Patman committee proceeded, Stans ealled for assistance from
the White ITouse. I was awave of the fact that the Patman investi-
eators had had numerous conversations with Parkinson and the inves-
tlfratm' themselves came to the Republican Nationai Convention to
interview Stans on August 23, 1972. Upon Mr, Stans’ veturn froi the
Republican Convention he met with the investigative staft of the Pat-
man committee, which I believe occurred on Aungust 30. e was
accompanied at both these interviews by M. Parkinson.

At some point in tiwe during these investigations Mr. Parkinson
was-put in touch with (‘onwrcmmfm Garry Brown. who was & member
of the Banking and Curloncv Committee. To the best of mny recollee-
tion, this may Tave resulted Trom discussions between members of the
White House congressional relations staft with the R epublican mem-
bers of the Banking and Currency Committee to detevmine whe would
be most helpful on the committee, and Brown indicated his willing-
ness to assist.

On September 8, Congressman Brown sent a letter to the Attorney
General recarding the fm'tlwomnw appearance of Secretary Stans and
others before the Patman comumittee. I have submicted to the com-

mittee a copy of this Jetter, which was, in fuct, drafted by Mr. Parckin- -

son for Congressman Brown.

[The lotter was mavked exhibit No. 8420, *]

Mr. Deax. Tt is my recollection that Seeret ary Stans was scheduled
to appear before the Patman committee for formal testimony on Sep

*See p. 1181,
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tember 14. Prior to Parkinson’s drafting the letter for Congressmay
Brown. T had been asked to disenss the matter with Jlenry Petersen,

- which I did. T told Petersen of the problem and asked hin: for his fecl.

ing about Stans and others appearving before the Patman comamitie,.
ad what etfect that might have on either the grand jury or the indicted
individuals once the mdiciments were handed dovwn. I vecall that
Petersen had very stvong feclings that it could be very detrimental tn
the Gov c-"nment < ability to pr osecute successfully the Waterpate case.
but he said he would have te give some thonght to rospomhn-r ta Con-
sressman Brown’s letter. T had several additional discussions w cith
Petersen and later with the Attorney General, when PCUHFCI‘ indicated
he did not think he could respond before the schednied appearance of
Stans on September 14. .

The Justice Department did not fee] that it could write such a letter
for one individual regarding the Patman hearings and was very reluc-
tant to do so. I also bad conversations with Mitehell about this and
reported the matter to Ilaldeman and Ehvlichman. The Justice De-

partment felt that for them to write such a letter would look like a
direct effort to block the hearings and I frankly had to agree. There-
fore, no respouse was sent prior to the scheduled § (»ptcmbor 14
appearance of Stans and M. Parkinson himself informed the com-
mittee that Staus would not appear beeause he felt it would be detri-
mental to the then pending civil and criminal investigations,

Tt was after my September 15 meeting with the President where
this matter had been brie fly and "unprflﬂv discussed and, as the subse-
quent activitics on the Patman commiitee becarme more intense that
the White House became more invelved in dealing with the Patman
committee. On September 25, Chairman Patman 'lnnounwed that he
would hold a vote on October 3 regarding the issuing of subpenas to
witnesses. With this anrouncement the YWhite ITouse congressional

relations staff began talking with members of the conumttee as well

as the Republican ]c'xdershxp of the Houge. |

I recall several conversations with Mr. Tiramons and Dick Cook
regarding this matter as well as conversations with Haldeman. Tim-
mons and Cook informed me that there was a daily change in the list
of potential witnesses and the list was ever growing and beginning
to reach into the White House itself. Tn diseussing it with Haldeman
I asked him how he thought the Patman hearings mwht be turned off.
He suggested that T mu_rht talk with Secretary Connally about the
matter because Connally would know Patman as well as anybody. I
called Seeretary Connally and told him the reason I was cnﬂmn’ He

said that the onlv thing he could think of, the only soft spot that Pat-
man might have, was that he had reccived ]arsrc contnbutxoqs from a
Tfoshmrrton lobbvist and had heard rumors that some of these contri-
butions may not h:‘n‘e been reported.

I discussed this matter wich Bill Timmons and we concluded that
several Republicans wounld probably have a similar problem so the
matter was dropped. At this time I cannot vecall the name of the
Iobbyvist whom Secretary Connally said had made the coutributions to
Mr. Patman. Timmons and T had also discussed thut probably some
of the members of the Banking and Currency Committee would have
themselves 1\ofemml campaign act violations and that it probably

would be wortlischile to check out their reporting to the Clerk of the

Huuco T1old Timimnons T would look into it.
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On September 26 T veceived a report T had requested from Parkin-
son after he had one of his associates check the repoits of the wembers
of the committee with the Clerk of the House. After I received the
document from Parkinson, a copy of which I have submitted to the
committee, I decided it would be a cheap shot to get into anything of
this nature.

[The document referred to was marked exhibit No. "%—21.‘]

Mr. Deax. Accordingly, I never reviewed the document that Park-
inson submitted and I have not reviewed it to thisday.

While the White House had received through its congressional re-
lations staif informal reports as to who was hkel; to be subpeunaed,
Chairman Patman made public his list on October 2, 1972. The indi-
viduals for whom subpenas were to be requested was extensive and in-
cluded several people who had varying degrees of knowledge regard-
ing the Watergate and related matters. This list, for e\mnple included
Alfred Baldwin. Jack Caulficld, persons from the finunce commit-
tee, Sally Harony. Fred LaRue, Clark MacGregor, Mr. Magruder,
Mr. Mardian, Mr. Mitchell, Rob Odle, Bart Porter, I—Iucrh lo;m,Stana,
Timmons, and myself. I have submitted to the committec a copy of the
entire list.

[ The document referred to was marked exhibit No. 34-22.7]

Mr. Drax. As the names on the list had continued to evelve, it be-
came increasingly apparent that the White House did not want the
hearings to be held. For example, Bill Timmons tcok a much greater
intevest in the project when he realized carly on that his name was
among those who would be called. I say this not because Timmons had
any reason not to appear because I know of no illegal or improper
activity on Tiramons’ part, rather he had been working to prevent the
heavings from occurring in the first instance through his conversations
with the Republican Jeaders and members of the ¢ commxttee. This Le
knew would put him in an awkward position.

I began receiving increasing pressure from \htcheﬂ. Stans, Parkin-
<on and others to 'r“t the Justice Department to respond to the Sep-
tember 8 letter of Cougress’man Brown as a vehicle that Congressman

Jrown could use in persuading other Republicans not to vote in favor.

of the subpenas. Congressman Brown felt that with this document in
hand he could give the Republicans and others something to hang their
vote on. I had continued my conversatious with Heurv Peter*on and
after the indictments had been returned he said that indeed he did feel
that the Justice Department should issue such a letter hecause of the
potential irlx}.»licatinlls of the breadth of the Patiman hearings. The Jet-
ter was sent on October 2, 1972, T have submitted to the committee a
copy of Congressman Brown’s letter ® and Assistant Attorney General
Petersen’s response.

[ The document referred to was marked exhibit No. 34-25.4}

Mr. Deax. A number of people worked on getting t‘n(- v otes NeCOSSATY
ro bloek the Patman committec hearings. M. Timmons diseussed the
matter with the House Republican leaders who ageeed to be of assist-
ance by making it a matter for the leadership consideration. which
resulied in divcetion from the leadership to the members of the com-

—

! See p. 1IR3,
?8ep p. 1100,
2 Congressman DBrown's lottec appears as exhlibit 3+-29.
18en p. 1104,
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mitioe to vote against the hourings. T was infovmed that Congress,.
Brown bad been w 011 ng with several smembers on the De: mocratic s
of the Patman committoo to assist in v oting against {the hearings o
an alternative not to appear for the }wamws Timmons infor mud
that he was also in dlrect contact with one of the leaders of the sog
crn delegation who was being qmre helpful in persuading the sou:_
erncys on the commitice not to vote for the subpenas or in the alten,
tive not to appear at the meoting on Getober 3. Also Mitehell repor,
to me that he had been w orlmw “with some people in New York toe
the New Yorkers on the committee to vote against the ho‘u‘mf’* It
told me. and I cannot recall now which members of the New \o
qemmho“ he referred to. that he had assurances that they wou!
cither no., show up or would vote against tiie hearings. I in turn pass.
this information on to Timmons, but I did not tell hiia the souree ¢
my information. On Qctober 3 the vote was held and the subpen,
were defeated by a vote of 20 to 15 and another sigh of velief wa
nade at the White House that we had leaped one more hurdle in t.
continuing covernp. :
On’ Qctober 4, however, Chairrnan Patman requested a GAQ i»
vestigation and I was asked by Stans what this would mean. T to!
him that this would be primarily between himself and the GAO b
that since GAO had no subpena power to compel testimony, the scoj
of their mv cslxglhon would have limits. He said he felt that he conk
work with Elmer Staats, who was an old and good friend, and not I
this matter m,t out of hand with the GAQ. On Qctober 10, Chairma:
Patman decided to proceed without subpena power, and sent letfer:
to MacGregor. Stans, Mitchell, and mvself. Evervbedy who received
such a letter declined to appear and Patman held his heavings witk
empty witness chairs and, as T recall the press accounts, “lectured”
the missing witnesses.

Trre Seererrr MATTER

I would now like to tnrn to the so-called Segretti matter. I have
been informed by committee counsel that the s ub]ect of alleged po-
litical sabotage will be taken up in subsequent hearings. However, I
have been asked to explain in full the pattern of coverup which
evolved in connection with the Watergate and related matters and my
explanation wonld be less than complete in presenting my knowledge
of the subject if T were to omit the so-called Scgretti matter. While the
Segretti matior was not divectlv velated to the Watergate. the coverny
of the facts snrreunding Mr. Segretti’s activities was consistent with
other parts of the vonma] White House cover: ap which followed the
Watergate mcxdr‘nt I will not go into extensive detail at this time.
rather I will sive the highlights of the pattern that was followed
regarding the dealings of the White Honse with Mr. Segretli,

T fivst heard of Mr. Segretti when Gordon Strachan called me m
late June and told me that the FBT had called a friend of his by th
name of Donald Segretii, and wqueawd to interview him in connoct.o.
with the break-in ut the Democratic National Committee. Strachan
asked if T would meet with Segretti. T told him that T wonld and
Stra wchan arranged a meeting al “the Mavflower Hotel where Sogretii
was staying. Strachan gave me a very general deseripgion of My, So-
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TODAY SHOW
INTERVIEW
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JOHN DEAN INTERVIEW : T

TOH BROKAY: If ever there was a -contemporary author in
\merica, wh&ineads no Introduction, it is John Dean whd was counsel
zo.Prasidenf Nian, a man who served»him duriné tﬁe Watergate
ccﬁeruﬁ, who subsequénﬁ]y te;;ified against him, and in fact;

served time in prison, as a result of his own role in Vatergate.

‘He is now the author of a2 book called "Blind Ambition™,
a book about the Watergate coverup, about thg atmosphere iIn

the Vhite House at the time. il B . :

“Hr. Dean s with us here on ""Today" thls morning, with

Czr] Stern, MBC HNews Correspondent, who covers the Justic2 Department
fr "us on a regular basls, and cbvered, gave much of his life,
in—act to the coverage of Watergate. i

Hr. Dean, first of all, there 'are some new developments

i
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i3 this book. You describe how President Hixon first rat

ility of blocking the initial Congressional inve
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gation, or initial. Congressional rings into Yatergate, hearings

that Congressman Mright Patman of Texas wanted to call, and

ne. raises tha possibility of using Jerry Ford, who was then

House Hinority Leader, to block those hearings.

Did the VWhite House think of Gerald Ford as a stooge?

‘.\

JOHN DEAN: | don't think a stoogs is the right word.

They certainly thought of Jerry Ford as somzbody who would do

=

T "r biddiag, when it needed to be done; and with the Patman
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hearings, it wWas something that concerned all of us at that
stage of the coverup very much, and as you will recall from the
hook, the Pr?sident says'tﬂa; he. wants Ford to get {n, and do 8
his part to é!ock thase very untimely hearlngs at the time.
BROKAW; One of'the ways which &oﬁ had.hoped to put pressure
on Pétman was to detail some quest?ohéb]e caﬁpa?gn?contributions
;thatAha may have received, énd when you had a dis;ussion about
this w?tg BiIJ-Timmons, who ;as'then heading up the Conéressioﬁal
‘liaison from the White House, he said: That’#la sensitiQe point,

becaus= Ford may have somz problems in that area as wa2il. .

shat were the problems that Gerald Ford may have had,

ALk
- °

campaign cantributions?’

’\\_/
' 1 . ' ; ' ~
DEAN: BIl11"did not elaborate at thes time. He knew that

1 had sent one of the lawyers from %helra~é3ectjcn committea
to check the feéo}dsAof the memSers‘of'tﬁe Patman'commitfeef
and } had those, in_Fact-the day i was in the offlice, talking
.with Bill abpgt_thfs; and.he‘said that, John, he said, 1 don't,
think this is a very good idea, beca&se some of- our guys, and
.Jarry? may have some problems along this line; so ﬁe said doq‘t
raise it; and 1 agread. : |
CARYL STERN: Perhaps the most digturbing matter raised,
though, in your discussjon in the-book_abobt.ﬁera!é Ford, and
F

t+- afforts made to derail] the.Patman hearings in October of

i>Tz is the thought that Mr. Ford did have very intimate

=
-



Vﬁontact with White House staff people, In planning precisely

)

how to do this. Mow, Mr. Ford testified during his own coafirmation
‘hearings that he didn't have ény such contact, or at least, RS

.
-

he didn't recall any. BDid Hr. Ford tell the truth about that? ;
A DEAN: .Well; i don't recslld, Carl; prec?;eiy what Hr.

chrd said at the time of his confirmation hearings to becoma
Vice President. All 1'm recalling are the facts as_| remember

.them, and -} reﬁember'very clearly that Bill Timmons told me

on a number of occasions how he was workimg with Mr. Ford, and ~

- ¥r. Ford was doing his part, after the White House startaed that
Cinitiative. e . g e . SR

-

. )
i

STERN: Timmons has denied having had any contact with-

F— 1 - -
Ford. Who had contact with Ford? e re S ‘ :

=y ) ey o » .-
DEAN: Well, | don't necessary say it was Timnons himself

“that was having the contact. But somebody on his staff--

STERN: Who?
DEAN: ~--and It was Dick Cook, thes man who had once worked

with the Patman Committez, before he had later joined the Vhite

House--with the individuals.

STERN: How do yeu'khow that?

DERI: VWell, ] ts}ked to Dick about jt. It camé up in
Presidential poﬁvcrsatian that Dick was 4 man who had been working
et Bi1 Timmons, as you'l] }ecaXY at the time was on the
\_Atiems 135t as one b would be called before the Patman Committee.
So Bii} was veyry sensltive about his own involvement in trying

"
13

?o b}c;k the hzarings. Bbick Cook was the man who did the -



legwork, and dealt with Hr. Ford, and the other members of the

Tomnittea. .
STERN:* Did he report back as to any of his conversations
with Gerald Ford?

DEAN: To me, or to the Walte-- . -

t

STERMN: To any meeting that you were present at?

-

DEAN: Vell, of course. Yes.
" STERM: Give me an example.
DEAN: WYell, 1 can recall Dick coming back, and. telling, .

for cxamp}a; how Jerry was go?ﬁg to call a meeting of the minority

ce
-

‘mbers in Les Aaron's office -ofr the House. F}oor, and ranYy'“

5?#‘] them wﬁat tﬁey shouid do. on the day of the vote,. and how -
‘thay should hold togather, and thargs of'tbxs‘nature."

STERN: And what should they do? Tﬁey should b!o;k those
heaéiﬁgs froﬁ going forward? |

DEAN; Thét‘s correct.

BROKAV Well, néw, }ef me read,fou, if | may, Tbm, what -
'th; tfanscrigt of the Ford confirmation hearisgs saltd. 1 ﬁoa‘t
read the whoie_thing. But the quéstlon is Trom Senator Byrd.

“"Here you ' in contact with anyone at the Vhite House during

the pariod of August to October, 1972, concerning ‘the Patman

r
Ed

Committea's pos,ibl investigation of the Vatergate break-in?
svey, Mr. Ford: lot.to my best recollection."
Do you think Hr. Ford would have recalled that? Is that

Tik=Ty, that he wouldn't have recalled Tt?
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DEAN: | would be surprised, If he didn't recall it. He

. knew Dick Cook from a number of years. He knew Dick Cook worked

» -

at the WYhite House. 1 would be very surprised, if he didn'lt :

~know the White House's interest, in not having those hearlngs

-

go forward.
STERN: So, do you believe that Mr. Ford did not tell

the trutﬁ,fwheﬁ he said to this commlittee under cath, that he

- did not recall any such contact?

DEAN: 1 believe not\reco1!éct?ng is a very safe answer

-~

Tor him. X

STER¥: My quéstioh is: .Db you believe he lied?

&

DEAN: ! don't want to say that. 1'11 stand on the facts,
: . e 1 i i ;
as | know them. :

N ; ‘ ) . - : .
BROKAY: And what are the. facts, as you know them, about

‘the extent of GeraldkFafd's khowledge of whaf had happeﬁed during

Uétérgate?"Did.he percelve this as‘oniy ) pofiticél problem,
-probab?y embarrassing to thé White House, or did he understand
j;he real nature o% what was goning on,:Whét-Qou.wgre attémpting
o, do?’ St | _ . )

DEAN: ﬁe?i, ! don't think that anybody had briefed Hr.

50?&, or HAr. Ford had any.intFmaté know!edge as to what was |
"55339 én- e ih?nk I wés very clear thét{the Vhite House elidn® s
"want -this investigation going on, just before an a!e:tion._l =

w0 that anybody who was in Wash?ngton-dur?ng.the days of
b}

Yartergate and the cover-up didn't need wmuch to know that
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§Bﬁsth]ng wrong had gone on, and there were efforts to kgep
It guiet, but I don't know of any specific briefings that Mr.
Foré vas givgn;'certainly'! didr't give him any, nor do | know 2
of Timmons, or Cook, or anybody else giving him any..
BROKAW: ‘TSIS business about Gerald Fo;d possibly having

some problems In the campaign contribution area has now recelvad

sgme attention. It's well known as well that the Special Prosecutor

S " -

has bzen Jlooking into campaign contribution areas in President =
Ford's political background. Has anyone from the Special Prosecutor's’
OfFice 'talked to you?.

: DEAM: No. They have not: e . . e S

BROKAW: ‘Have you volunteered any inforﬁaﬁion to théé?
DEAN: No;¥d! have not. : ' . '
BROXAW: Of any kind. : {

STERN: UF Nr. Ford did not tell the truth in chis;matfér,‘=
zconcarningfthe contact Q?tb.tha Vhite Housz, and | don'f want
to harp on that, but it;s—én é&fu]iy Smporﬁant point.. ]tfs”
perhaps the most }mportant.point that emerged. from tﬁe‘confirmation
proceedings from Hr. Ford. 1% he didn't tell the-whole truth -
on that occas£dn, that's .a pretty.big m;tter. -

T

DEAN: Yes, indaéd,. G o 7;. , ' E

'STERN::.Sé lAwant you to ﬁn&crstand Qh;t'yoﬁ'fe saving
to us here. It's important.

BEAN: Mell, I'm reporting the facts, and they're repor%ed
in ﬁy book, just as_the way they hapﬁ&ned, tha way | rcéa?l

very vividly them happening, during those days.
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SENATE COMMITTEE ON RULES AND ADMINI

"The Citatraiax. Senator 1ell?

Senator Prin. In the interest of thme, T will limit myself to one
question. T would like to return for a mowment to this guestion of in
fiation and the burdens imposed, particularly. on oiir older peop.c‘. T
bill that passed the Senate and js in the ITouse now c.uls for, 1 think.
a ‘T-pereent increase. Before it passed the House, womid you urge the
President to sign this bill or do you fecl t] R

Aly. Foxn. 1 “believe that if you are going to increase the benefits,
vou have to, in all honesty. find additional yevenue. Now, T he ave nol
had a chance to study “hoﬂmr this added Lenefit payment that is pro-
vided in the Senate version requires additional revenue, whetner we
have to inct easc the cen]m;r so that you are taxing more nf the income.
or whether we have to increase the rates. But if we have not pmvldod
in such legislation additional revenues to keep the balance in the
social =ecurxh trast funds—if we lnw not, provided that revenue—
I would nrae that it be vetoed.

T hope that we can nrmlde enouwh revenue because. in my om.mo.l.
certainly the people in the older age brackets. hecause of inflation.
nead the belp. And I want to help them. But I do not want to destrov
the social security. coneept by not providing sufficient revenues to
finance these additional benefits.

- Senator Perr. Thank vou very much.

" The CamdaX. Senator Byrd?

Senator Bynn. Ropreqenhtu‘e Ford. will vou velate to the eommit-
tee vour vole. if any. in the blocking of an mveshmt:m ‘)v the House
Banking and Cturency Connmittee into the Wateroate breakin as pro-
posed hy Chairman Wright Patman in October m‘ 19727

M. Forn. Senator Byrd. I do not have the full details here, but T
can give vou the salient points.

Chairman Patman had proposed sometime in Octo‘wr‘r of 1072 that
his committee. the Committee on Banking and Curreney in the House,
nndertake an investigation of certain American banks in trading m'
handling accounts between an Aanerican bank and a foreion bank.

And Chayrman Patman aranted subpena authority to carry out this
investication. '

A number of members of ﬂmt committee on the Pepnb‘zr an side and
several on the Demoeratic side were opnosed fo giving that anthority
to Mr. Patman. A number of our Republicans on that conu nitide caune
to me and said, “Jerrv. we think von ought to eall 2 meeting so that
we en our side of the aisle conld brmv' {lie Teadership un to date, and
perhans the leadership would give some ecounsel fo the Repubiiean
1'-w-ml:m s of the Committee on Bankine and CI‘I‘"“I;("\ 2

So as the Republican leader of the Hounsa. upon this renuest, T ealled
a meeting. We met with ihe Republicen members of that eommittes
on one or two aceasions. They broucht us up o daie. We talked
aboni what the noliev onoht {o be in the commirtec. bt thern ywas
no Lo}m-)m an Party decision made. The action taken by the Repulb-
Ticans plos, T think. fve Democvats was, I think, to deny Chairman
Patman thaet power of subpena.

Senatar Byap. You mav he aware that John Dean étfézzed to the
Senate Watermale Committee on June 25 of this vear that Fouse Re-

puhlican hxar‘m"‘ “acted at the request of the TWhito ¥ mmt ‘: 1ol
investizmtion.” TWera you in contact with anvone at the Whils
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Jduring the p%md of Aungust through October 1972 concerning the
Perman comimittee’s possible inv e:twatxon of the Watevaate breakin 2

e

Mre. Forp. Not to my best lecolle(.tlon. The best and, T think most
authoritative answer to this question is one that Repr esentative Jerr N
Brown of the Third District of Michigan submitted to the Lrvin
Lorm*ut{tee.

Colgressman Brown was very much involved as a member of the
Comumittes on Banking and Curreney, and his name was much more
cinsely identified with this problem than was mine.

As a result, he prepared the very detailed statements which I under-

stnod were put in the record of the Ervin committee. He was never
ealled to testify. But I would be glad to submit that statement by
Congressman Brown because it goes into this whole question in very

creat depth.

T think it might be helpful to the part of this record if the chairman
of the committee would so permit.

The CHardzAN. You may supply them for the record.

Mr. Foxp. I will, sir.

[The statement referred to follows 1]

STATEMENT oF How. Garey E. BrowN, A MeMrer oF CoNGRESS Froy 1HE StAE
OF MICHIGAN, SUBMITTED TO THE SeLzcr (,osnrmm oN PPEbIDhVTI.\L Cade-
PAIGN Acrn'zrr::s ’

- Mr. Chairman and Members of the Commzttee, at the outset let me express my
dleep appreciation to you, Mr. Chairman, and the Committee for providing e with
this oppoctunity to respond in kind to the allegations made by Mr. Dean in his

taternent and earlier presentation to this Committee. To say that I was some-
what dumbfoanded to learn of the allegations made by Mr, Dean is a gross under
stintement since my participation in the bipartisan effort by members of the House
Banking and Currency Committee; which resnited in the denial of the granting of
subpoena authority to the Chairman of our Cowmittee, was in no way connected
with the so-called “cover- p” actmues in which Mr. Dean has testiied he
participated.

Perzaps it wounld be best for me to provule the Committee with a chronological
statewment of what occurred in this recard on the Xonse side, 23 best I can recall
it. and then provide the Commmee thh a particularized 1e~‘pon=e to Mr. Dean's
several allegations. A

Asseming the eoncurrence of the Com mitfee in this proposed format of my testx-
mouy. let me proceed with the chrouologzical statement of activities on the House
side, the period of time over which these activities occarred having been late
Auzust of 1972 to October 3, 1972, the latier date being the date of the meefing of
the House Banking and Currency Committes at which.- by a vote of 15 to 20,
Chairman Patman's request for subpoera authority was deaied.

While back in Michigan fultilling commitmeants during the Augost Recess of '

the Congress, on either the late afternoon of August 30 or the morning of Au-
sust 31,1972, T heard or my car radio that the Banking and Cucrency Committee
was mterwewin,ﬂ: Mr. Maurice Stans, tie Chairman of the Finance Committee
to Re-Elect the President, with respect to the handling of campaign contributions
~inge there appeared to be a coanecticn bem een the handling of some of such
funds and the Watergate burglary.

Inasmuch as I had not heen notifiad by my ofiice in YWashington, nm- had L
received any notice in Michizan, that the Committee was me=fing for this pur-
pose,; I immediately got in-touch with ray Washingron ofiice and determined that
Chairman Patman had not called a meeting, vor had he notified my office of the
interviews with Stans. T then contaeted the Bauking and Currsavy Conamitiee
staft to determine the facts with respeet to the news browmdeast I Lunl hieard
Al determined that no Committes meefing had been called. butf vathoer thac
cectain members of the Rinking and Curroney Committes stall, at the dicection
of the Chatrman, had individualiy inferviewed Stans, T was voable fo asesrratn
af that time from the stafy the justideation therefor or the reazons why Commic-
res mombers hid not been advised of Chairman Patman’s initiation of such
investication by staft mambers. .
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In view of the media attention provoked, it ':ppns*red io e Patman’s urtioy
weas prompied by political considerations, so I again called my IWashingion el
and asked my legistative assistunt to carefully examine the Rules of the l.u.:».
and the Rules of the Bapking and Currency Commitiee to determine by wia:
authority Patwan had initizted suwel investigation without fivst seehm, =
authority of the Committee and by what m!t.hnnty he could do so without eve;,
notifring Committee members, As a result of such research by my Jegistative wide,
on Thursday, August 31, 1972 I dictated a letter to Chairman Patwan citing the
Rules of the House and the Committee and indicating my displeasure over ti-
fact that he had initiated such investigation without seeking the concarrence ¢f
the Comumittee or even motifying Committee reembers. This letter is attached ax
Exhibit No. 1. °

At this juncture, I should point out that to the best of my recollection, there
had been no Committee discussion of our Committee’s jurisdiction-over, or invelve.
ment in, an investigation of the Re-Eleet Committee‘s handling of contributions
or their possible involvement in the financing of the YWatergate burglary. le
short, the Committee staff investigation hit me as A complete surprise.

It beinz n=cessary for.me to attend the fall Republican State Convention in
Detroit September 1 znd 2, I did not return to Washington uatil late Monday.
Labor Day. September 4.

Inasmuch as tkhe only information I had been able to develop regarding the
content of the interviews by Patman's staff members of Stans was from a Repub-
licen staff member who had been present during only a porton of such interviews,
I contacted Afr. Stans to attempt to determine the particulars about the stafl
ingniry, whether or not a transeript-had been made of such interviews or auy
other recornd of tha discussions in order that I might be apprised of the substance
of such interviews to the same extent as were the staff members and Mr. Patman
In the course of my discussion of the matter telepbonically with Mr. Stans, !
regnested an opportueily to discuss the matter pbrsonﬂlly with him and arranesd
to see him on the roorning of September 6.

In view of Mr. Dean’s statements on pages 103 and 104 to tha effect that he and
cthers associated with the White Honse were aware of and concernead ahont the
Banking and Currency staff investigation as early as mid-August. I should puiia

ent that rary first contact of any kind with anyone from the White House or ths
Finunce Committee to Re-Elect the President was this call to Mr. Stans on Sep-
tember 5, 1972*

Also, in view of Mr. Dean’s association of the Pmmmg and Currency Committie
with what he alleges were cover-up discussions going on at this time, it iz excen
tial to keep in raind the limited scope of the Patman investigation. In his lztter to
me, received September 5, responding to my letter of Avgust 81, 1972, Chairmarn
Patman said that his interest in an investigation was prompied bs' a letter he had
received from a2 Committee member who urged either Patman or the International
Finance Snbcommittee Chairman to look into possible violations of the Foreim

2ank Secrecy Act by the Committee to Re-Elect the President in connection with
tbe transfer of some of its fands throngh Mexico. In addition, 2nd subsequently,

- Patman brouzht into the scope of his mfe;ev‘t the circomstances surrounding a

525,000 contribution to the Committee to Ra-Elect the President by one whe was
mtnre:ted in a natioaal bank charier applicntinn which was pendine. In chor, by
Patmay'y own statements, he was justifying jarizdiction of the Banking and €
rency Committee over the investigation by limiting ity scope to the use of bagks
in the financial transactions of the Committes to Re-Elect the Prasiceat, tha batk
charter matter. and to the Waterzate burglary by virtue of the surfacing of fivs
In the bank acecant of Mr, Barker, one of those who had been arrested for par-
dciprtion in such burgiary.

Not satisfied with Patman’s responze of September £, 1972, T immadiatelr
drafted a letter to him, which letier was co<igned by several of my Repmbilcan
colleacnes on the Commiitee, in which wwe demanded that Patman eall a meeting
cf the Committae fo discuxs the whole matter. Our letter of September 5, 1972 i
ettached a3 Bxhibit No. 2,

In view of Patman's rationale for conduecting the investiza tmn in my infer
view with Mr. Stans on September 6, I aitempted to ascectain tho trpe facks from
bim concerning the bhandling of campaign contributions. tlw aNeged Mexicat

1At no time, befora, dnriez. and since the nerlod coverad br this chronolosy, have T s
cussed the Commitres’s seilan or the Watercate matter nith tha Pre¢tdant. Mr. ko
Mr. Pritehman. Mr, Dhenn. Mr. 3itelell, Mr. Coison, or any similar persen within the imae:
group mentinned by Mr. Dean.
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,-~.np-rmr" of such Funds, and their apparent vliimate deposit in Barker’s bank
, Mr. Scans 1mormed me he did wot know how or why the funls went to
\1..;“.-.; and ended up in Barker’s account, stating that Alr, Gorcdon Liddy, tha gen-
s=a! vounsel for the Committee, had been the one who made the decisions regard-

e how contcibutions were reported, haadled, ete. under the new campaigu ex-
--1:,!‘.!“"9 law. Since my inquiry iavolved the lagality of the handling of such
spdds, it was agreed I should talk with DMr., Eenneth Parkinson, who was the
iezal connsel for the Finance Com:zittee to Re-Elect the Presxdeut having
swvesiled Mr, Liddy, whose services had been terminated.

I et with Mr. Stans personally onls this one tims, but I may have talked
him three or four times on the phone. During the course of these conversa-
;. I am guite sure I sugzested that it might be betwr for Mr. Stans to testify,
- sive Patman the oppnrtrm"y to prbhmzp and take political advantage of
srxns’ npoa-appearance, it being the position of most Republican Committee mem-
sors that Patman’s interest in an investigation was more political thar anything

ssenssed the application of the Bank Secreey Act, the campnign expenditure
and other aspects of the matter telsphonically with Mr. Parkinson several
«aivl met with him on one occasion of which I am certain avd possibly a sec-
-4 rime very briefly, althoungh X cannot speeifically reeall a second occasion.
[wring this time, X had asked my l2gislative assistant, who is an attorney
w1 a former law clerk for a Federal Court of Appeals Judge, to brief for me
1o guastion of the propriety of the apr-arance of Mr. Stans and others befoce
air Committee. In the conrse of this research done by both my legislative assist-
e and mysels, it became apparent that such an appearance could prejudice the
siziies of those who might be indicted as a result of the grand jury proceedings
st were then in progress. Appreci.zcinn of this problem prompted me to write
-2 tarh the Attorney General and Mr. Stans requesting the opininn of the Attor-

-mev General with respect to the pronviety of Mr. Stans’ appearanee as well as the

npinind of . Stang’ attorney couneerning his own positinn or the appropriateness
of such appearazce. These letters are attached as Exhibits No. 3 and 4, respee-
tirels. At the time of the writing of these letters, Mr. Staans had not, to my
snreviedge, decided whether or net ke would voluntarily appear before the
Cemmittee. i -

Ir is this Jetter of September & to the \Attormey General which Mr. Dean has
«aicl in his statemant, . . . was. in fact, drafted by Parkinson for Congressman
Rroon” I uneyuivotally deny this charge. The letter to the Attorney (General
23 dictated by me to my seeretary and is my work profluct in every respect. It ig
riy hext recollaction that from the contersations I had with Mr. Stans and Mr.
Parkinson up te this point it appeared to me no decision had been made as fo
whether or not Mr. Stans would appear. The decision to write such letters was
*helly my own and stemmed from my concern about the propriety of his ap-
saarrnee regardless of wwhat his decision might be, snch concern havinz been
Pi:m';red ny_tne limited research done by my legislabive aide and myself to this
time,

I would be asinine for me to say that in the course of my dizeussions of the
matter with Stans and Parkinson I did not mention the concern I felt abont the
Wl ramifications of My, Stans’ appearance beafore the Committee and of my be-
it that the legal opinions of those most closely involved, nareely, the Attorney
Geneznl and Stans, shonld be ebtained. In any such discussions, howaver. it was
Awvars a matter of my aporising Stars and Packinson of what T pronosed tn do
srher than receipt br me of snzgestions, renuests, nrgings. ete. from them. |

Althouzh I received no written respnase from the Attorney Geaeral to my let-
“er of Sepiember S, on September 12 Ralph Erickson, the Deputy Attorney Genernl,
whenhoned my ofice and talked with 2 member of my staif and advised that hn
T3 ealling in response to my letter of September 3 amd indicated that the Attor-
2=T General wonld be happy to talic with me abont the matier bnt did not intand
Sorovpond in writing, sugzzesting that tha gnestions I bhad asked wer2 now moont
souze in the interim Me. Stans had nohﬁﬁd the Committes that he was de-
viininz the invitaton to tesﬁty

Purinz this perind of time, the Bankinz and Currency Committes, althongh
reastdering other lezi«hfinn h.ld been embroiled in the contvoversy abont the
““’*‘ et of hearinzs by the Committee into the Patman charges,) thﬁ scope of

bih T have already describsd. Bat none of the activitiex regardinz politieal
<‘\'~m1~e huzzing, eover-up. ete. whirh have now suefaced and which ate now
wime izenssed were kmosyn at the time the BDanking and (arreney (‘mm-ntt:va

= contemplating its henrings nad it most also be kept in mind that Paiman’s
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effort 1o invesiizate the matter of the Jaundered funds and Ba
was analyzed by most of us at that time as being Llatantly | ! ticalin v
up-coning election.

Chairman Patman finglly did discuss the matter with the Committes und.
although ohjection was voived by many of us. he scheduled ameeting of the Cons.
mitiee for September 14 to receive the testimony of Stans and hillip &, Tlughes,
Director of thie Oilice of Federal Electivus. General Accountiug Office. This wis
the meeting at which Stans declined to appear.

Because Stans Lad failed m appear voluntarily, Chairman Patman notifie!?
the Committee on September 23, 1§72 that Le intended to seek the authority uf
the Committee to issue subpoenas for Stans and several others at a moesting of 1l
Commiittee to be held QOctober 3. When it Lecsme certain that the Chairnion
would seek subpoena autthority, my earlier concern about the prapriety of such
_appearance wwas renewed and intensined since ia the meantime the legal rescuict;
done by me and my office had clearly established the danger of conduneting
Conf're'ssinnql Liearing when criminal preceedings were pending rezarcing (%
same matier. .

As a result 1 a“n'n wrote to the Atior ner General on Septemher 26, 1972,
rointing out to him that alt though the questions I had raised in miy Septewmher &

" letter might have become meot after Stans bad declined to voluntarily festify,
Patman’s plans to seek subpeenn authority made my questions and concerns very
real once again. This letter of September 26 is sttached as Exhihit No. 5.

Despite my insistence in my letter o the Attarney General of September 25,
. 1972 for an opinion to be e’tpr-essed. twasn't untii the Iote afterncon of Qcioleer &
that I jearned Mr. Henryr Petersen,. Ac; istant Attorney General. had replied to
my letier of Septemher 26, not to me, but to Patmau. In fact, Patman had received
the response from Petersen before I knew that o resprmse had been provided,
since I was not riven g copy until I requested the same. This letter from Patersen
is attached as Exhibit No. 6 and is the samme £s Dean'’s Exhibit No. 21.

In this regard. T felf at the time that the Department of Justice and the Atior-
pey General’'s Office was Liring most uncooperative and, in fact. was takine a
rather untenable position of not wanting to cet invelved when mv rosearch hmi
clearly satisfied me that the suecess of their proseentive efforts of those whn hadl
been indicted by the grand jury could be seriously jeopardized by public hear-
inzs of the Banking and Currency Committee under the law applicable thereis
especially the holding in the Delaney ease. It having been my position. theu.
and it continwnes to be my position. as well as that of Archibald Cox. the Specinl
Prosecutor, that public hearings in prejudicing the rights of thoase iwho have
heen accuzed, necessarily also seriously jeopardize the successful prosecution of
these individusals. -

In ary case, the Commitiee met ont October 3 and, as is well known, vofed 2013

againzt authorizing the Chairman fo issue the sobpeenas he bas reguested.”

Alihnuz‘n it is of little pertinence to this chronolozy. I wish to add that eon-
gistent with my many-times stated position regarding the Banking and Currener
Committee’s investicution of this wmatter, ro wit. that such investigation shouid
axcait complation of criminnl proceedings. Y wrofe to Chairman Patman in my-!-
January of this year urging him to desiznate a siaff member or hire putside
sel to monitor the crxmxml trials of the “Watergite Seven” =p that we mic
kent current on the proeeedines of those trials o we wonld be prepaved to co.,-
duct -a Commitiee investization unpor completion of the criminal proeceedinz:

Needless to say. the Chairman declined {o grant my request and in a rejpdy ¢1-
pressing manv regasans, elosed the door vpon any investization by our Cnmu ire

From the foregoing. it is obrious that Mr. Deun, in his festimonz before the
‘Renate Nelect Qonnmttee either has stated things to be triue which he Goes 1
know fo he trne or hins enzaged in ahsalnte falsel 100ds, More particulaciy, I reciie
the foumrin : {References :\.r-,a.to tha c.“tr‘me"t precented 1o your Committee o
June 25, 197 3\

On page 164, Mr, Dean sfates: “At some r»mru in time during these investizi-
tions Mr. Parkinsen was pot in tonch with Concoressman Gary (qc) Lrown wis
was a member of the Bankmg and Currencey Committes.”

2 In view of Mz, Drean's textimany about the proposed Patman witness e
at thizs point thag T ﬂra"rm»’] 1» determine who Patman wantad to enhpmvm bt iE weas
wml T rocefvad sueh Het, and delivered at 3 P e M””"’" the evenine hefnea (00
1603772 meddin~ that T ar anyoens clze, to mr knowledze, knew who DPatman jntemded o>
subpnean and enll nswitnesses, 55
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e fact is. Afr, Packinson was not put io touch with we. I requested an oppor-
sunity o talk to Mre. Parkioson during my original coulact wtih Mr. Stans when
3 couzld not expiaia to me the severs al legal aspects of tite hamdling of funds by

Mz _-vm th2 lemal interpretation given to the campaign expenditurve law as

iz applied *o contribrtions wade to *Le Compzitiee to Re-Llect the President befere

anid -“te. April 7, 1972, and otlher aspects ot the stall intervogation of Mr. Stans.
Alse ou page 104, Mr. Dean states:
~To tae l;(:a.. ¢f my recollection this may have resuited from discussious between
sembe s af the White IIouse Congressional Relations staff with the Republican
witers ¢f the Banking and Currency Committee to determine who wouldd be
oozt belpful cu the Committee end .bro'm indiccted his willingness io usxist.”
r_‘zl'l.ldala ailded.)
= cill no conversaiion with anyone which coulil be inferpreted as
it 2ress ta assist.” This is especiatly tene if oxe iaterprets, as
an's word “assist” as being willingness to assist in the White

s oFforts ':o y eck the Parman Committee hearings for the second reason he

el on page 103: that beivg, and I quote . . . "and second, ﬂlf*v jx.:.t might
ambla icto somethicg that would sturt unraveliog tvw caver-up.”

It shouid Le mointed out that as of even Se,)te'mber 1972, or for thot matter
as Octn"m 3. 1072, to sy recnue«.tw:., sere had ‘)een 1o pubiie suggestion

"( over-un” was i progress. The fac tna I oppos=d unch hearings at that

e ,"ﬁ.AUO“ I was satisfied the law n‘.xde impnmuvmu, ant undesirable the

condner of hearings of our Comumitiee while the erimingl proceedings were pend-

r qed, in addizion. thought Patman’s desire for such hearings was purely

=al, while jor oller reusona the White Iouse may have opposed such hear-

s, ity piake our gc:ll similar, namely, the blocking of the heavings, but it is

iF improper to atirvibute the same weotivation, as Mr. Dean has doue.

Azzin en page 10, Mr. Dean states © - :

~Yn September &th Congressman Beown sent a ietter to the Atiorrer General
T r.u-J;::sr the forthcoming appearance of Secretary Stans aud others before ithe

I'ntman bn:n...\"‘ee. I have submitted to the Committee a copy of this letter

cExhinit Noo 18),whick was, in jact, drafted by Parkinson jor Congressman

bLenea™ J-_‘uz;-i:u is-added.)

Taed iy, this letrer was not drafted by Parkinson for me, nov to the best

recoli2emion does my letter to the Attorney General contain auny inpat

‘rom Porsinson, althouzh of eourse, as I have already indicated I had apprised

s and Parkinson of my pia‘ns to solicit the oninion of the Attorney General.

: this same mf':- 104 Dean azain refers to “Parkinson’s drafting the letter for

Congressman Brown,” swhich i3 a repetition of the previous ecroneous starement.

I v,;sb. to advise the Committee with respect to this statement that upon
parning of this charge mAade by AMr. Dean, T knew it to be so completely ervoneous

that I soughi an expianation for the making of same by Mr. Dean, I'attempied o

comtact Mr Parkinson to determiue whether ov not ke, or auyone else to his
knowledge, nizht have suggested or stared to Mr. Dean that he, Parkinson, had
drafeed such leiter. Mr. Parkicson was - -not immediately available and I was
unabie fo talk with him until the late afternoon of Tue~day. June 28, 1973, Dean’s

staternent having be-n made, as you will recall, in his -testimony before this

Corpmittes on June 23, 19735, In this felephoue conversation with My, Parkinson

on June 26, }I:. Parkioson unequivoeully denied that hie had drafied suclh lefter
0y .‘na.. ha, oo auyons elsg to his knowledge, had advised Mr. De‘m that sucix

trer had been drafted by him, Parkinzon.

_umever, in the course of my atrempting to lﬂam fropt Packinson how De‘m
could r.ow;br' have made this statement, Parkinson recalled tsat he had preparved
a d=afi ¢f a leirer at the request of Mr. -Dean which Le, Parkinson. undevstooed
s to be furnisned to the- Attoeney General ¢z a pronosed responze by the
Aitarren General to my letter of Seprember S, 1972 (Dean’s Exhibit No. 18, my
Fichibit Na. 3). T reauesied a copy of thizs propoesed deaft swhich was prepared by
‘[" ‘Parkinson for Mr. Dean nudd it is attacked heceto as Fxhibit No. 7. It is Me.
s .\ x.'m-rv Q f::rraer recotlection thai snbsequent fo his prepavation of this denfr
the same for what Mr. Parkinson nadersroml to bhe a turther
on hy Mr. Dean. OF ennrse, this proposed deatfi was apparently

r need ax invended since no response was rade at that time fo my ietter ol

Sentemher K, 1672, =

S 1;.1: "ha'v' citos o time frame for thiz statemane. I <liamd hs pomembered | inde.
s roly hasd eomunenced opposins the Pataian ¢ on :w parle asx X0 TR
wiedse of what Dean says were ot -galng couversdiinns within his vroup on
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Although it is relatively insignificant, on page 105 of his testimony, Dean stales
that vo response was sent by the Justice Department to my leiter of Sepfember §
prior to the scheduled appearance of Mr. Stans on September 14: whereas, al-
thouzh Desu’s discussion of ihis matier on page 105 may be subs{antially sccuriate,
X did receive a lelephonic response to my letter of Septemlbier 8 from DNeputy
Attorrexr General Erickson ia which, 2s I have above pointed out, e indicate:
no written response would he provided end that he felt the guestions I bad
raised in my letter of September § were moot because of Stan's decision not in
appear before the Committee voluntarily.

On pag= 108, Mr. Dean siates:

*I began receiving increasing pressure from Alitchell, Stans. Parkinson and
others to get the Justice Department to respond to tha September 8tk lelter of
Copzressman Brown as a vehicle that Congressman Rrown could use in persuad-
inz oth2rs not to vote in favor of the subpoenas. Congressman Brown feit thal
with thix document in hand hewould give the Reprblicans and olhers romelhing in
hang thsir vote on.” (emphasisadded)

The fact is, I krow of no basis for these statements since my only purpose in
writing to the Attommesr General on both occasions, that is, September 8§ and
Sepfemb=r 26, was to attempt to get the Atiorney General to recognize the law
for what I koew it to be and to appreciate the prosecutorial problems which
woitld be created by public hearivzs of the Committee. I especially knoxw of nn
bagis in-fact for the uunderlined porficn of the foregoing quote-from Nean's
statement, since I cannot recall having expressed the same to anyone. However.
there can be little guestion bnt what such a Jetter would have a favorabie impact
upon cther-members.

At the bottom of page 108 and on page 109 of Dean’s statement be states that
muck effort was put forth by many people, inciucding Mr. Timmons, to persnade
members of the Committee to vote against the bearings. I cen only spesk for this
member of the Commitiee in this rezard, but I do not recall receiving any nrging
from anycne at the Whife House to east my vote against such hearings.

In fact, I am very certrin I had no significant contact from anrone associated
with the Adminisfration or the White Honse regarding the hearings other than
the contacts I have already discussed with Mr, Stans and Mr. Parkinson.

Te the bast of my recollection, my only contacts with White ¥louse persoanel
were insignificant esntacts I had in the course of norranl legislative business
with Dick Coolk, the White House liaison agent for the Horse of Represeutatives,
who, rather than suggasting or urzing me to take any cnurse of action, merely
ingnired of me 25 to how things were going and whether or not T thought those
of ne who oppnsed the hearings wonld be suecessinl in ont epposition. In my dis-
enssions wich other memhers of the Committee at that time and sinee, I haye et
to find ona who indicated that he or ghe svas pressured in any way to vete as he
or she Gid.

In conclusion, ¥ wish to thank you, Mr. Chairman, and the members of the
Committee for vonr patience in permitting me to provide this probably unnaces.
sarily lenothy statement. My purpase in doing so was to establish far the record
not anly the absenee of culpability on my part, imt the absence of cudpability on
the part of the otber members of the Honse Committee on Banking and Cus-
reney in opposing the Patman investigation, to the extent that I have any knowl-
edze of other memhers’ actions.

T hope I have satisfied the Committee and tbe listening, viewing, and reading
audience that what Mr. Dean has concludad wrs causzally related action hy {he
majority of our Committee to what he was daing at the White House, has w
basis in fact and should not b2 so0 presnmed. If oppoesition to action proposed bF
one’s enlleagnes, when that oppositien is based on principle and proper palitieni
moativation, cannot he voiced withont sneh-opposition being interpreted as enipa-
ble condnet and obstrnetinm of jestice, then we certainly have reached & so0rY
state of affairs in our pelitical and lezistative system.

1f I have done nothing else. T trust that T have at least somewhat Qispailsd
the “cuilt by association” implicit in Mr. Dean's testimony by his linking of the
Eouse Banking and Crrrency Committes action with the wholz gamut of calps-
e condnet shout which he has testified. iy

I will be zlad ta answer any questions the members of the Committee yaight
cara{o pose.
Thank you.

Senator Byrno. Mr. Ford, vou undoubtedly would recall any conver-
sation vau might have had dnring that periad o Avgust-Qctober wilh
the President. with 3Mr. Faldeman. Mr. Ehtirchman, dr. Dean. orany~
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ane ot the White House, in connection with the propoesed investigution
iv the Patman committee. Do you recall any such conversations that -
woild indicate that the YWhite House wanted you to lend your efforts,
45 2 leader, to blocking such an investigation? X
Mr. Forp. I can say categorically, Senator Byrd, I never talked with
b President about it, or with Mr. Haldeman, Mr. Ehrlichman, and
Mi. Dean. I know emphatically I had no conversation with them nosv.
Almost daily, during my period as Republican leader in the House,
[ taliced with Mr. Timmons, or someone in the Legislative Liaison Of-
deg of the WWhite House, but even in this case I do not reeall any con-
zations concerning this particular matter. , ,
Senator Byrp. Was there any discussion between you and Mr. Tim-
uaes o between you and the other members of the Patman committee
or any of your colleagues in the House to the effact that the investiga-
-ina would possibly be harmiful to the President, harmful to his reelec-
iforr chances in the then upcoming Presidential election, or to the
Republican Party generally ¢ '
- Mr. Foxp. As I recall-the two meetings that I attended, both of

(RS

-which I called, the real issus that was discussed—and Jerry Brown’s

menio or prepared staterent probably expresses it better than I can— .
was that Mr. Patman, the chairman of the Committee on Banking and
Currency in the House, was going about the inatter in the wrong way.
And as I recall, statements were made he was going on a fishing
sxpadition. : T 5 - : )
‘Now, the ' members on onr side of the aisles in that committee were
concernad -about the procedure and the dangers that that procedure
might lead to a precedent. I think, in all honesty, that was the basic
thrust of the action of the Repubdlicans. And I think every Republican
on the commities voted to deny that responsibility or that power to the
chairmen. And I think they wers joined in that vots by five Democrats,
a3 I recall. So o majority of the committee furned down the authority.
Serator Byrn. But 23 I understacd you, any eforts that you ma
have contributed toward the stifling or impeding or blocking of suc
investigatiort by the Patman committee were not born of your feeling,
ov at least your feelings as expressed to anyons, that such an investiga-
tion would be harmful to the President, harmful to his chaaces of
reelection, or harmful to your party? - . - 1 7 e T
Mr.-Fowp.The answer 13 no, Senator Byrd..” -~ - G S
Senator Byro. Now, ¥r. Ford, as you know, the Attorney General
of the United States wears two hats. He is the chief law enforcement
officer of ‘the-United States and, at the samse time, he i3 the chief po-
litical adviser to the administration, regardless of whaiever adminis-
tratiory may be in power, whether it be a Democratic administration or
Republican administration. Do you believe that the Attorney General
should participate in partisan political activity such as the congres-
sional elections of 1974, or do yow think he should stay in a bipartisan
stance such as that traditionally talken, let us say, by the Secrctary of

“

~ Srate? -

Mr. Forp. Certainly the Secretary of State and the Secretary of
i -fense should refrain from partisan political activity. 'The Atinorney
tienarat does not have quite ths sume respouvsibilities as the two pravi-
¢ isly mentioned, but I do believe that he should certainly be cirewn-
-ooet, beeause as the principal law enforcing ofiicer of the Government
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Mr. Enwarns. In hindsight, do vou think your decision was correct ?

Mr. Forp. Well, it is somewhat bolstered by legal scholars. There hax
been no definitive decision. I think I could produce as many scholars
who believe as I do as others might produce for their viewpoint. So 1
think it is an unresolved matter where there is an honest diiference of
" opinion. ' .

Mr. Epwarps. Had you discussed the matter previously with the
Vice President before he came to the Speaker’s? '

Mr. Foro. I had on two occasions, as I recollect, at his request. niot
to just discuss his possibly submitting his Jetter to the Speaker, but to

-Jet him give me and one other Member of the House an opportunity
to liear his side of the story, which he-told both of us on some two
occasions. At the time, in both of those instances, he inferred in the
first and talked more affirmatively in the second that he might come
up and see the Speaker with this letter requesting action. I did not know
ihe day that he did it until T understood he was in the Speaker’s office,

gmeren. -, ] ' : :

Mr. Epwarps. Did he discuss with youn the rather large extent of his
criminal involvement before, in these previous discussions, in these
discussions before you met in the Speaker’s office ?

Mr. Forp. He discussed with me and one of my colleagues the alleg:-
tions that were alleged, not the full extent of them, and his willingness
to take an oath that they were untrue. o

Mr. Enwaros. Did he discuss his plan to submit the matter to the
House of Representatives with the President?

Mr. Fors. Q’Vith the President.?

Mr. Epwarps. With the President. ' :

Mr. Forp. I am not familiar one way or another with that.

Mr. Epwarps. He did not tell you at these previous meetings whether
or nat he had discussed the matter with the President?

Mr. Forp. He did not.

Chairmen Ropixo. Your time has expired.

Ms. Holtzman ?

- Als. Hopmzaean, ‘Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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¥ Ford, it 1s very late in the day and you have been patient after
a long day, 2 days really of grilling, and I have a few questions i
ask of you at this point. :

The first regards a report in October 1972 by the staff of the Hons
Banking and Currency Committee which uncovered a number «of
serious allegations regarding the reelection campaizn of Dresidr
Nixon. including information that large amounts of campalien coun-
tributions Lad been traced to one or more of the Watereste susnecs
about a seeret RNepublican fund of at least $330.000 available that we-
being used for intelligence-mathering purposes, that a Mexican bank
had been used to launder Jarge amounts of campaign funds, tha!
a Federal bank charter had been granted to a large Nixon campaicn
donor in unusual haste, and that top officials in the Presidential carr-
paign had ordered tiie bugeing of Demecrats” National Headanarters
as well as the surveillance of banlk accounts of Demoeratic Conores--
men and officials, o=

According to your testimony in the Senate, T undersiand that yen
2s a Republican leader played a role in the stopping of the investiv:
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{ion me in connection with the report by the Banking and Curreney
Conuniitee fnvestigation. This is not my question, Mr. I« ord; let me
tinish.

Now, I understaud also from your testimony that although you
met with Mr. Timmons of the White Houwe virtually every duy,
um did not discuss with him these matters of the allu ations in the

Panking and Currency staii report and you did not discuss the
White House role or White FHouse interest 1n stopping the investiza-
tion by the Banking and Currency Committee; is that correct!?

Ve Tgoo. Well, fuk* I should make one correction. I never testitied

i fore the Brvin committee. :

s, Horrzorax. No, no, I mean before the Senate Rules Conunittee,
1 saul before the Senate,

e P OnD. Ob, T thourht you inferved Senator Lrvin's connmittee.

Vs biorrzrax. T set forth a story there and I have subsequently

izeluded 1 the testimony over there the detailed statement that our

#olleague, Mr. Brown, submitted to the Ivvin commiitee involving

e whole matter.
Alr, Torn. Now, I said over there that—and by over there Tmean the
Senate commitiee—that I did not disenss the action that T teok, which
was to call two I\epubhc:m meetings of members of the Banking and

£ \ wm,y Committee with Me. Timmons or anybody elae

Tg sx. I understand. What T wauted to ask you was, did

\nz dxacuzs with Mr. Timmons or with anybody else at the VWhite

i{ouse whether or not the allegations made by the Banking and Cur-
reney staff had any basis in fact or not, :

Did you discuss with them, let’s say up to the peried of N avember 17

A Eorp. Tdonot verasmber h:utssuur those alleguations with any-
bodv on the White Ilouse sta(f in 1972,

Mg Horazasax: Oh.

Well, my question then is mmlv t ,,;oo-, en the action that vou
took with resgect to that proposed Danking and Currency Cemu nittee
xm‘v:dﬂdtlon.

Tu @ lotter, as T understand it, reported in the press on November 1,
1972, you called the comunittee stall veport the worst form of last-
minnte smear tacties, and I am concerned that this was done without
anapparent attempt tr) verd ity with the White House people the charges

: tn.xt had been made by that committee.

A Xosp. Well, m" release in that vegard was predicated on the
informatton that was given to e by the “menabers on our side of the
aisle of the Committee on Banking and Curreaey.

Ms. Horazarax, Well, as I understand it then, these comunitive

meecings—and I read Mre. Brown's, C')‘\"'!‘“{wi:l an Brown's statement—
the p.oblem that they felt with the Patnun- -proposed investigniion
vas that it was going to be o fishiay expedition, and v you, a3 minercity

!«-.-.

o, attended these sessions
Did you ever inform tvmm one way o the other t!
information one w uy or another as fo the trath or
; Gl ..l"‘"(?h /]
*‘-?v-_ Forp, T was asked by sovernd m\"u,w\, on iy side of the alsle
0 xmﬁy.‘}‘m’ il '.r.‘v- m catl the eotun A
1ot ()Tl ll)al"'s. HE i‘ !\\;)"‘ H
55":- that to'mtl when they have a pro
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1 They discussed the position that they us a group oucrht to take n i
1 {hose hearines or in those committee mectings, and in the course of . v
the disenssions at ihose several meetings, comments were made by o )
i various members as to the information t‘re\' thonglit might be avail- *
4 able, and they thought that My, Patman was going on a fshing :
4 expedition. and they T eliefs they thought were sound, aid. there- '
3 fore. decided to vote to postpone any action. : of
{ I think all the Fepublicans vofed one way with the help of five
2 Democrats. . N
i - Ms. Hourzaan. T understand that but I, as I smd was concerned -
% and stifl am concerned that statements were made in an attempt to pa
§ block that committee investigation, and some of the charges out of . e
1 which it arose have subaequenth' turned out to be true, without real .
4 investization it scems by anyone as to whether or not those charges -
had any- basis in fact. e
Alr. Foro. Well, I think what disturbed a mxmbcr of members was ' M
that Pazman committee, which is the Comumitiee on Banking aud th
Curreney, has limited ]U’ISC]ICUOH. It does not have the broad ] juris- 2
diction of the Ervin committee. in the Senate that can cut across of
jurisdictional lines betsween one standing committee and another. The T am
Subcommittee on Banking and Currencv has rather arbitrary juris- ot
dictional limits and some of the things that were included in, as I rec- i s
ollect. in Mr. Patmanr’s pvospectlve investigation, and some of the i
things that subsequently turned up in the Ervin committec were well s
bevond the jurisdictional limits of Mr. Patman’s Committee on B-ml\- .
mz and Currency. . ap
Ms. Hortzazax, But I take 1t that the lanndering, the use of inmx - e
pational ha anks. which still appears to turn out to he the case, for ~un
the nse of i‘kwra.l campaign funds, probably did fall within the ]uuc- t 1
- diction of that committee. 4 ] if
Mr. Fozp. Yes, I gather that particular item did, and T would not )
! b
argue that but s some of the other items were, I think a little boyond no
the Bankineg and Currency Committee jurisdiction. . thi
Ms. Hortzatax. That might be. E ©elr
4o I would like to turn to another a ca. I am sure T am not going to {
have time to finish it, but I feel it is xmpon anee simply to dispel any ]
remaining cloud that mi ight ariseatn mture time. bel
I must say that In n'ﬁelf have reviewed the very mte;mv(, financial : Gr
investigation which has been made hoth hy the IRS people and by the »oof
committec staff, and I must say that I personally, and T am sure many reo
other people, ave reliev od that the stress thus far, and it has been s

virtually Connﬂato have shown that you personally have not profited
from your public trust, aside, of course, from vour salary.

Ao Pono Thavk you.

Ms. 1;(\:;12);.\.\. And your lonorariums. But we do Jive in a tix
of enormous puu distrust of various political people and in view of ) Hor

the charges that heve heen surs ounding the White House itseif wirh At
vespert to campaign contributions and alleged favors done in respenze ‘,f
to those campaign contributions, I would like to raise some instapoes 07
that have come to our attention which do net reflect any improper For
conduct on your part, but I would like to give you the onpf)*tm..- ¥ U
under eath to dispel any possible nnpropr,et" t this time so tha : g

nobody can say ﬂ!“t we. a3 a commitiee, did not review this aves and
ymiwere ok given an epportunily to comruent on it.
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Av, Forp. I ap'nec iate the opg,oltunitv.
Ms. TloLrzaay. Thank you. Anil 1f I do not finish the guestions, [
ould like to be able to submit them to yvou in writing. and u the
fairman has no objection, to have them n uade part of the record.

M. Foro. I would be glad to.

\EA Horrzayax. Thank you.

Cheirman Ropixo, Without oupr‘tmn they may be entered as part
0 rhu vecord. [See app. 2. at p. 774

Is. Hourzsrax, We have bf>2n 'men a report that in 1973 a letter

wns written to the Departiment of . Agriculiure concerning a conipany

~alled Crystal Flash Petrolew Cor P-; and that an ofticial of that cor-

" poration has given to your—not to your, I am sorry, to the Ient

County Rep ablican I‘mmr'e Committes approximately ‘;‘uﬁ H00 to
218,570 in thelast 5 years.

Would you be able to comment on that atdxﬁ““tllt’ ,

A Foro, The man T think vou speak of is Mr. Frank Fehsenfeld.
Me. Fehsenteld has been a long-time precinet worker. T did not know
--m... he was & donor to the extent that vou have-indicated.

As T understand the case you speak of. Mr. Fehsenfeld is president
of Crystal Flash Gasoline (,o., i western Michigan., They have a
mumber of independent gasoline retail ontlets. In one of those retail
outlets, the proprietor has a grocery store. sort of a sideline, like in
many small towns or in semirural areas, this is the case.

Mr. Fehsenfeld wanted the ri ght to distribute food stamps like any
srocery store does.

v foeal oftice in Grand- Rap’d:. on behulf of Mr. Fehsentfeld, made
application, or wrote a letter to some official in the Fedaral Govern-
ient, and asked for a reviesw of the initial denial, and on review, as I
understand it, the head of food stamp operation reversed and gra anted
the right of Mr.. Fehsenfelds aas am*mn to distribute food stamps.
ff vou knew brank }Seh~eufeld he is the most honest, conscientious
auy I have ever known. Ha 1s almost teo cirenmspect, ‘and he would
not do anything wrong in violation of the law for anything, and I
think we did somethmo' that was right here. We hdped people in a
certain area got food smmps- :

Chairman Rooryo. Your time has expived.

Mr. Foro. May I offer some exhibits which will probably be more

helpful in explaining the records? They are ieiters from my stalt in
Grand Rapids to the | proper or‘lr-nla and myself and everrthing,
Chairman Roprvo. They will be accepted and made part of the
record.
[The doenments referred to follow:]

V.S, DEPARTMENT 08 AGRICULTURE.
" Foop AND NUTLITION SERVICE
Washington, D.C.. May 1, 1973.

Han, Genawp R, Ford,
Ifnnee of Represcntatives,

Dear Me. Fono: This is in fariher response to ynur recent inuiry eencerning
the pronosed donial of the application for Crystal Flash Gasnline Ssrvies Station,
0 Gramdeille Avenae, SOV, Grand Rapid-, Michigan, o pasticipats in the
& '“- Ntazen Progoaun,

T Foud Stamp Review Officer a-sivesd to this aatter has eonplered his
-*‘?H-‘.;‘ of alt relevant infornnation, The Revisw Odicer alzo visiiad the stove, ob-
served the stock of eligible fond items avatlable [or retail <ale, and diseussad
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